
 
 

Ridgway Town Council 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

Wednesday, January 9, 2019 
201 N. Railroad Street, Ridgway, Colorado 

 
 
5:30 p.m.  
 
ROLL CALL Councilors Robb Austin, Tom Heffernan, Ellen Hunter, Ninah Hunter, Tim Malone, Mayor Pro 

Tem Eric Johnson and Mayor John Clark 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
The Council will enter into a closed session pursuant to Colorado Revised Statutes 24-6-402(b) and (e) for 
conference with the Town Attorney for the purpose of receiving legal advice regarding Council actions, and 
to discuss matters subject to negotiations regarding public property.  The Council may reconvene into 
executive session at the end of the regular meeting.  
 
6:00 p.m.  
 
ADDITIONS & DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
ADOPTION OF CONSENT CALENDAR   All matters listed under the consent calendar are considered to be routine by 
the Town Council and enacted by one motion.  The Council has received and considered reports and recommendations 
prior to assigning consent calendar designations.  Copies of the reports are on file in the Town Clerk’s Office and are 
available to the public.  There will be no separate discussion on these items.  If discussion is requested, that item will be 
removed from the consent calendar and considered separately. 
 

1. Minutes of the Regular Meeting of December 12, 2018. 
 

2. Register of Demands for January 2019. 
 

3. Pursuant to State Statute, designate the Town Hall bulletin board as the official posting place for 
Town notices. 

 
4. Renewal of Liquor Store License for San Juan Liquors.  

 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS   Established time for the public to address the Council regarding any item not otherwise listed on 
the agenda.  Comments will be limited to 5 minutes per person. 
 
 
PUBLIC REQUESTS AND PRESENTATIONS   Public comments will be limited to 5 minutes per person; discussion of 
each item may be limited to 20 minutes. 
 

5. 2018 Year End Report – Colin Lacy, Ridgway Area Chamber of Commerce. 
 

6. Update from the Ridgway Creative District and Main Street Programs, with Presentation of ideas for 
Creative Industries project and technical assistance grant for 2019 – Community Initiatives 
Facilitator, Diedra Silbert. 

 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS   Public comments will be limited to 5 minutes per person; hearings may be limited to 20 minutes. 



Town Council Agenda 
January 9, 2019 
Page 2 
 
 
LAND USE  Public comments will be limited to 5 minutes per person; hearings may be limited to 20 minutes. 
 
POLICY MATTERS   Public comments will be limited to 5 minutes per person; overall discussion of each item may be 
limited to 20 minutes. 
 

7. 2019 Memorandum of Understanding for Colorado Creative Partnership and Program – Community 
Initiatives Facilitator, Diedra Silbert. 
 

8. Discussion and follow up to adoption of Ordinance 2018-07 Prohibiting the Use of Certain Plastic 
Bags – Town Manager. 
 

9. Thirty-day extension for access to Railroad Street from Lot A, Park Subdivision - Town Attorney. 
 

10. Adoption of the Ridgway Emergency Operations Plan – Town Manager. 
 

11. Agreement to purchase Spillman Software in 2019 – Town Manager. 
 

12. Appointments to the Ouray County/ Ridgway Joint Planning Board – Mayor Clark. 
 
MANAGERS UPDATE 

• 2019 Meeting and Workshop Schedule, including Capital Assessment Workshop on Jan 23 
• Information to community on water use  
• Marijuana drop-off location update 
• Year-end newsletter and 2019 outlook 

 
STAFF REPORT   Written report is provided for informational purposes prior to the meeting updating Council on 
various matters that may or may not warrant discussion and action. 
 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS   Informational verbal reports from Councilors pertaining to the following 
committees, commissions and organizations: 
 
Council Appointed Committees, Commissions, Task Forces: 
Ridgway Parks, Trails & Open Space Committee - Councilors Austin, N. Hunter and Mayor Pro Tem Johnson 
Ridgway Planning Commission - Councilor E. Hunter and Mayor Clark 
Ridgway Creative District Creative Advocacy Team - Councilor N. Hunter 
Ridgway Scholarship Committee - Councilors Malone, Mayor Pro Tem Johnson and Mayor Clark 
 
Council Board Appointments: 
Ouray County Weed Board - Councilor E. Hunter; alternate - Town Engineer 
Ouray County Joint Planning Board - Councilor E. Hunter, citizens Rod Fitzhugh & Tom McKenney; alternate-

Mayor Pro Tem Johnson 
Sneffels Energy Board - Mayor Clark and Town Manager; alternate - Mayor Pro Tem Johnson 
Ouray County Multi-Jurisdictional Housing Advisory Committee - Councilor Heffernan; alternate - Town 
Manager 
Region 10 Board - Mayor Clark 
WestCO Dispatch Board - Town Marshal; alternate - Town Manager 
Gunnison Valley Transportation Planning Region - Town Manager; alternate - Town Engineer 
Ouray County Transit Committee - Community Initiatives Facilitator; alternate - Town Manager 
Ouray County Water Users Association - Councilor E. Hunter 
 



Town Council Agenda 
January 9, 2019 
Page 3 
 
 
Council Participation and Liaisons: 
Chamber of Commerce - Councilmember Malone 
Communities That Care Coalition - Mayor Clark 
Ouray County Fairgrounds - Councilor Hunter 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Deadline for agenda items for next regular meeting, Wednesday, February 6, 2019 at 4:00 p.m., Town Clerk’s 
Office, 201 N. Railroad Street, Ridgway, Colorado. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

Consent Agenda 
 



 
RIDGWAY TOWN COUNCIL  

 
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 

 
DECEMBER 12, 2018 

 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
The Mayor Pro Tem called the meeting to order at 5:35 p.m. in the Community Center at 201 N. 
Railroad Street, Ridgway, Colorado.  In attendance Councilors Austin, Heffernan, E. Hunter, N. 
Hunter, Malone and Mayor Pro Tem Johnson.  Mayor Clark was absent for the roll call.     
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

The Town Attorney requested entering into a closed session pursuant to Colorado Revised 
Statutes 24-6-402(b) and (e) for conference with the Town Attorney for the purpose of 
receiving legal advice regarding Council actions, and to discuss matters subject to 
negotiations regarding public property, water rights and water supply.   

 
ACTION: 
 
It was moved by Councilor N. Hunter, seconded by Councilor Malone and unanimously carried to 
enter into closed session.  
 
The Council entered into executive session at 5:35 p.m. with the Town Attorney and Town 
Manager. 
 
Mayor Clark entered the closed session at 5:45 p.m. 
 
The Council reconvened to open session at 6:00 p.m.    
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
1. Minutes of the Regular Meeting of November 14, 2018. 
 
2. Minutes of Workshop Meeting on November 28, 2018. 
 
3. Register of Demands for December 2018. 
 
4. Renewal of restaurant liquor license for Taco Del Gnar. 
 
5. Renewal of restaurant liquor license for Four Corners Restaurant. 
 
ACTION: 
 
It was moved by Councilor Austin and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Johnson to approve the 
consent agenda.  The motion carried unanimously.  
 
PUBLIC REQUESTS AND PRESENTATIONS 
 
6.    Request for support to apply for grant funds from Colorado Tourism Office for a plan to 

develop Heritage Park  
 
 Ridgway Area Chamber of Commerce Board President Colin Lacy addressed the Council 

along with Chamber Marketing Director Hilary Lewkowitz, and reported on a meeting with 



Town Council Minutes 
December 12, 2018 
Page 2 
 

Town staff to discuss a grant opportunity from the Colorado Tourism Office.  The Chamber 
desires to pursue the grant funds to use for planning either a remodel or new construction of 
the existing building the Chamber leases from the Town, and upgrades to the grounds and 
Heritage Park, also owned by the Town.  An application will be made for $15,000 in grant 
funds, with a 25% match to be paid by the Chamber.  The planning process will be conducted 
by “outside consultants” with “community input for the visioning process”.   Mr. Lacy noted 
planning will be for changes and upgrades to Town property, of which the Chamber will have 
no financial interest.  

 
 The Council agreed with apply for the planning grant.    
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
7.   Adoption of an Ordinance Prohibiting the Use of Certain Plastic Bags and Encouraging 

Citizens to Curtail Their Use of Single Use Plastics 
 

Memo dated 12-6-18 from Town Attorney Nerlin recommending language in Section 12-3-
1 (B) of the proposed ordinance remain as presented at the previous meeting, and pursue 
in the future any additional changes to the regulations.  

 
The Town Attorney presented an ordinance which places a ban on the use of plastic bags 
by all retail businesses in Town; defines exemptions; and encourages citizens to curtail the 
use of single use plastics. He reported at the prior meeting Council asked staff to remove the 
exclusions from the document.  Legal counsel and staff are recommending the ordinance 
only address the ban on plastic bags and not eliminate the exemptions. This will allow for 
continued public discussion and involvement by local businesses and retailers, it was noted.  
 
Manager Jen Coates reported regional efforts are underway to prepare regulations pertaining 
to banning single use plastics, and recommended the Town become involved in these 
discussions. 
 
There were comments and discussion by the Council regarding implementation of the ban 
on plastic bags, removing the exemptions from the ordinance, and changing the enactment 
date to March of 2019 allow for outreach to business owners.  
 
SPEAKING FROM THE AUDIENCE 
 
Indigo Krois noted it is “the right thing to do for the environment and the community” to ban 
plastics, and asked the Council to “set an example for other Town’s to follow”.   
 
Megan Gordon reported “we have talked to businesses” and “Mountain Market is in support” 
of “banning plastic bags”, adding “we have spent a year educating the public”.  
 
Stephanie Lauerman and Erica Gordon read a letter from parents and citizens supporting the 
ban on plastic bags and the proposed ban on single use plastics.  They noted “plastic 
garbage is a regional and global problem” and encouraged the Council to vote for a “plastic 
free future”, stating adoption of the ordinance can bring “real change” and “our town will be 
a seed of inspiration for the rest of the state”.  
 
Robert Warren urged the Council to “pass the ordinance with the exemptions” . 
 
Vicki Hawse spoke in support of adoption of the ordinance “with all the exemptions included”.  
 
Ulli Sir Jesse spoke in support noting it would “do the right thing” “for the future”.  



Town Council Minutes 
December 12, 2018 
Page 3 
 

 
Monkee Hawse noted “Ridgway is setting the path” noting “starting in our community” we can 
make a “change globally”.  
 
Willow Krois suggested “local businesses can join together to order non-plastic” items which 
may “assist them economically” in changing to new products.  
 
There was discussion by the Council.  
 

ACTION: 
 
Councilor Austin moved to adopt Ordinance 2018-07 with the exclusion of the exemptions listed 
under 12-3-1 (B) Items 1, 2 and 3 and change the implementation date to March 1st.  Councilor 
N. Hunter seconded. With the motion on the floor there was discussion.  After  a call for the vote 
the motion carried with Councilor Malone voting no. 

 
8.     Adoption of the 2019 Fiscal Year Budget and setting the Property Tax Levy for 2019 
 
ACTION: 

 
On a motion by Councilor E. Hunter, with a second by Mayor Pro Tem Johnson the motion to 
approve Resolution No. 18-11 Appropriating Sums of Money to the Various Funds in the Amount 
and for the Purpose as Set Forth Below for the 2019 Budget Year, carried unanimously.   

 
ACTION: 
 
Moved by Councilor E. Hunter to approve Resolution No. 18-12 Adopting a Budget for the 
Calendar Year Beginning on the First Day of January 2019 and Ending on the Last Day of 
December, 2019 the motion was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Johnson and carried unanimously.  
 
ACTION: 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Johnson moved to approve Resolution No. 18-13 Adopting the Property Tax Levy 
for the Year 2019 for Certification to the Ouray County Commissioners.  Councilmember Austin 
seconded the motion, which carried unanimously.  
 
POLICY MATTERS 
 
9.   Adoption of the Five and Ten Year Capital Improvement Plans 
 
ACTION: 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Johnson moved, with Councilor E. Hunter seconding to adopt Resolution 18-14 
Adopting the 2019 Capital Improvement Plans.  The motion carried unanimously.  
 
10.   Adoption of the 2019 Strategic Plan 
 
  Manager Coates noted the strategic plan contains the Town’s vision and mission, with goals 

specific to action items in 2019. 
 
ACTION: 
 
It was moved by Councilor E. Hunter, seconded by Councilmember N. Hunter and unanimously 
carried to adopt the 2019 Strategic Plan.  



Town Council Minutes 
December 12, 2018 
Page 4 
 
 
11. Shared Agency License Agreement with Spillman Technologies, Inc and host agency 

Montrose Police Department for purchased products and services 
 
  The Town Manager reported use of the Spillman Technologies software by the Marshal’s 

Department is contained in the 2019 budget and requires entering into two agreements.  The 
first agreement is a shared agency license, as the three law enforcement agencies in Ouray 
County will be listed under the Montrose Police Department as the host agency.  The second 
will be also shared by the three agencies for products and services from Spillman, the cost 
of which she noted, will be amortized over three years.  

 
ACTION: 
 
Councilmember Heffernan moved to enter into an shared license agreement with Spillman 
Technologies Inc and the Montrose Police Department.  Councilor E. Hunter seconded, and the 
motion carried unanimously.  
 
ACTION: 
 
Moved by Councilor Heffernan to enter into a purchased products and services agreement with 
the City of Ouray, County of Ouray and Spillman Technologies.  The motion was seconded by 
Mayor Pro Tem Johnson and carried unanimously.  
 
12.  Amendment to Fiber Optic Indefeasible Right of Use Agreement with Clearnetworx, LLC 
 
  Manager Coates reported last year the Town entered into an agreement with Clearnetworx 

for installation of fiber optics. The proposed amendment to the agreement will extend time 
frames and expand the service area.  On a question from the Council she explained the 
conduit system comprised of buried service lines, is owned by Clearnetworx under a 99 year 
lease with the Town for 50% of the conduit space.  

 
ACTION: 
 
It was moved by Councilor N. Hunter, seconded by Councilmember E. Hunter and unanimously 
carried to approve an amendment to the Fiber Optic Indefeasible Right of Use Agreement with 
Clearnetworx, LLC.  
 
13.   Thirty day extension for access to Railroad Street from Lot A, Park Subdivision 
 
   The Town Attorney recommended adoption of a thirty day extension for access to Railroad 

Street from Lot A of Park Subdivision to allow for time to prepare an agreement.  He reported 
staff is still in discussions with the land owner regarding granting public access for the river 
way trail system.  

 
ACTION: 

 
Councilor Heffernan moved, with Councilor N. Hunter seconding to approve a thirty day extension 
for a reciprocal license agreement for access to Railroad Street from Lot A, Park Subdivision.  
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
14.  Discussion regarding updated fee schedules 
 

The Town Manager presented a draft Summary Table of Fees dated 12-5-18 and reviewed 
the document with the Council. She explained proposed increases are based on recuperating 



Town Council Minutes 
December 12, 2018 
Page 5 
 

some of the costs incurred to provide services.  The document will consolidate all fees into 
one format, and eliminate them from specific sections of the Municipal Code.   
 
There was discussion by the Council.  Staff was directed to include language to allow 
reduction or deferment of fees for affordable housing components to development.   Manager 
Coates explained the document will be presented to the Council within the next two months.  

 
15.  Appointment to San Miguel and Ouray County Juvenile Services Board 
 
  Manager Coates reported the Intergovernmental Agreement for Juvenile Services requires 

appointment of a representative to the board, and noted the Marshal is interested in serving.  
 
ACTION: 
 
Councilor E. Hunter moved, with a second by Councilmember Austin to appoint the Town Marshal 
as the representative to the Juvenile Services Board, with Councilor Austin serving as the 
alternate. On a call for the vote the motion carried unanimously.   
 
16.  Recommendation of change to full time permanent employment status for Chase Jones  
 
  The Town Manager recommended effective January 1, 2019 to remove Chase Jones from 

probationary status and designate as permanent full time employment status.  
 
ACTION: 
 
Moved by Councilor Heffernan, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Johnson and unanimously carried 
to change employment status for Chase Jones as a full time, non-probationary employee. 
  
17.   Request to pursue implementation of grease trap regulations 
 
  Manager Coates explained staff is recommending development of regulations pertaining to 

installation of grease traps in new and existing structures.  She reported the recommendation 
is based on problems in the wastewater collection system lines which have been identified 
as grease clogs at saddles and connections.  The Town has the authority to regulate 
disallowing discharge of liquids into the collection or lagoon system she noted.  Staff will 
begin a targeted outreach to affected businesses regarding adverse impacts to the Town 
system due to improper traps, and will begin preparing regulations that will be presented to 
the Council in the next few months.   The Council agreed.  

 
TOWN MANAGERS REPORT 
 

Manager Coates reported on installation and completion of the Beaver Creek Diversion; and 
an update on the Space to Create project.  

   
COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

Councilor N. Hunter reported on the recent retreat of the Creative District Creative Advocacy 
Team; and Mayor Clark on the Communities that Care meeting.  

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:00 p.m.  
 
 



Town Council Minutes 
December 12, 2018 
Page 6 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
Pam Kraft, MMC 
Town Clerk  
 
  
 



Name Memo Account Paid Amount

True Value Alpine-Operating Account

632GO2 · Supplies & Materials -28.08
661GO2 · Vehicle & Equip Maint & Repair -5.17
732POO · Supplies & Materials -34.41
932SOO · Supplies & Materials -76.06
932WOO · Supplies & Materials -187.47

2nd Chance line break 931WOO · Maintenance & Repairs -30.84
Beaver Creek headgate 931WOO · Maintenance & Repairs -82.15
water leak - residential 931WOO · Maintenance & Repairs -46.47

TOTAL -490.65

SGS Accutest Inc Alpine-Operating Account

990WOO · Testing - water -27.80

TOTAL -27.80

Federal Express Alpine-Operating Account

990WOO · Testing - water -78.34
CIRSA 551GOO · Postage - general -20.92

TOTAL -99.26

Delta Rigging & Tools Alpine-Operating Account

tire chains - snowplow 661GO2 · Vehicle & Equip Maint & Repair -262.92

TOTAL -262.92

Valvoline Instant Oil Change Alpine-Operating Account

oil - 2017 Explorer 860GO3 · Gas & Oil -56.93

TOTAL -56.93

UNCC Alpine-Operating Account

915WOO · Dues & memberships -7.25
915SOO · Dues & Memberships -7.25

TOTAL -14.50

Eurofins Eaton Analytical Inc. Alpine-Operating Account

990WOO · Testing - water -150.00

TOTAL -150.00

Quill.com Alpine-Operating Account

541GOO · Office Supplies -28.58
550GOO · Filing Fees/Recording Costs -4.79

TOTAL -33.37

Town of Ridgway
Register of Demands

January 2019

Page 1



Name Memo Account Paid Amount

Air Compressor Service Alpine-Operating Account

air compressor install - wtr plant 931WOO · Maintenance & Repairs -958.00
air compressor parts - wtr plant 931WOO · Maintenance & Repairs -1,950.43

TOTAL -2,908.43

Ridgway Old West Fest Alpine-Operating Account

Ridgway Old West Fest 5040GO1 · Other Contributions -500.00

TOTAL -500.00

SESAC Alpine-Operating Account

use of music @ public events 533GOO · Economic Development -438.00

TOTAL -438.00

Deeply Digital LLC Alpine-Operating Account

Jan 2019 maintenance 530GOO · Computer -210.65
Jan 2019 maintenance 630GO2 · Computer -19.15
Jan 2019 maintenance 730POO · Computer -19.15
Jan 2019 maintenance 830GO3 · Computer -95.75
Jan 2019 maintenance 930WOO · Computer -19.15
Jan 2019 maintenance 930SOO · Computer -19.15

TOTAL -383.00

CML Alpine-Operating Account

522GOO · Dues & Memberships -1,244.00

TOTAL -1,244.00

Verizon Wireless Alpine-Operating Account

943SOO · Telephone -73.97
943WOO · Telephone -122.86
843GO3 · Telephone -210.56
543GOO · Telephone -115.32
643GO2 · Telephone -52.66
552GOO · GIS Mapping - admin -10.00
952SOO · GIS Mapping - sewer -10.00
952WOO · GIS Mapping - water -10.01

TOTAL -605.38

The Paper Clip LLC Alpine-Operating Account

541GOO · Office Supplies -10.91
941WOO · Office Supplies -8.24
941SOO · Office Supplies -8.23

TOTAL -27.38

Town of Ridgway
Register of Demands

January 2019

Page 2



Name Memo Account Paid Amount

Caselle Inc Alpine-Operating Account

Feb 2019 914SOO · Consulting & Engineering Servs -159.50
Feb 2019 914WOO · Consulting & Engineering Ser... -159.50

TOTAL -319.00

Town of Ridgway
Register of Demands

January 2019

Page 3



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #5 
 



































Jan - Dec 18

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

Lodging Tax Income 55,836.59

Total Income 55,836.59

Gross Profit 55,836.59

Expense
Advertising and Promotion

Collaboration and Networking 95.17
Itineraries 131.25
Online Media and Advertising, 8,972.38
Print Media and Advertising 4,325.52
Ridgway Online Presence Prj 168.20
Visitor's Guide Fullfillment, P 3,137.50
Website Upgrades and Operations 5,727.19

Total Advertising and Promotion 22,557.21

Creative District Corridor 5,105.00
Payroll Expenses

Staff 23,927.60

Total Payroll Expenses 23,927.60

Visitor Center Operations
Electric 289.68
Natural Gas 322.06
Property & Liability Insurance 1,018.00
Repairs and Maintenance 800.17
Telephone and Internet 1,291.01
Trash 60.36
Volunteer Expense 2,896.02
Water Cooler 43.74
Visitor Center Operations - Other 420.53

Total Visitor Center Operations 7,141.57

Visitor Center Upgrades/Merch 582.50

Total Expense 59,313.88

Net Ordinary Income -3,477.29

Net Income -3,477.29

2:44 PM Ridgway Area Chamber of Commerce
01/02/19 Profit & Loss for Lodging Tax Class
Accrual Basis January through December 2018

Page 1





 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #6 
 



2018 Accomplishments for Ridgway Creative Main Street 

(Ridgway Creative District, Main Street, and Space to Create)  

 
Master Planning (shared with Planner) 

• Collaborated with consultants and local leadership 
• Planned June kickoff meetings and focus groups and Sept. community 

event 
• Developed volunteer steering committee 
• Coordinated outreach at community events 
• Developed Town’s Master Planning webpage 
• Promoted surveys, including receiving 664 responses to initial survey 
• Edited and re-edited documents, including Community Engagement Plan, Community 

Profile, drafts of Policy Framework and Land Use Map 

Housing 
• Coordinated Tri-Agency dinner with speaker on affordable housing options and efforts 
• Developed and promoted ADU flyer with Citizens State Bank (and Planner) 
• Organized new Space to Create partners and citizens core group for predevelopment 
• Continued Space to Create predevelopment work with Artspace, including massing and 

concept development, architectural renderings, CHFA application materials, and open 
house held on rendering options 

• Provided training to Town Council from DOLA Division of Housing on funding options for 
affordable housing 

Wayfinding (with some funding from Colorado Main Street mini-grant) 
• Planned and installed 7 downtown wayfinding maps with historic photos 
• Constructed and installed 1 kiosk in Hartwell Park for community postings 
• Installed electricity to illuminate banner poles 

Parking 
Completed downtown parking assessment, working with consultants through Colorado Main 
Street funding 

Re-certification 
Applied for and received 5-year recertification as a creative district from Colorado Creative 
Industries (CCI) 

Colorado Creative Corridor (CTO Marketing Matching Grant for 2018 and 2019) 
• Collaborated successfully with 4 other towns’ creative districts/Chambers to establish the 

first Colorado Creative Corridor, including statewide and local marketing (webpage rolled 
out in June: www.colorado.com/creative-corridor-channel), local/regional distribution of 
1,000 brochures, a business survey, creation of First Fridays, and development of a local 
business brochure for visitors (soon to be printed) 

• Success of the CO Creative Corridor in its first year (per final report), measured by:  

http://www.colorado.com/creative-corridor-channel


 5,000 print brochures distributed state-wide 
 Colorado.com webpage:  11,051 page views, plus an average of 1,200 article views  
 Colorado.com banner ads leading to webpage: 34,662 impressions, and 1,359 clicks!  
 Love, Colorado Magazine: distribution to 200,000 out-of-state and in-state subscribers  
 Denver Post, The Know Social Media Campaign via Facebook & Instagram: 297,400 

impressions; 9,310 clicks; 3.31% click-through rate (above 2% industry average); 139 
total shares; top performing post was Ridgway with 4.05% click-through rate.  

 Facebook: 285 followers, 283 likes  
 Instagram: 153 followers  
 Google Ad Words: 126 clicks; Salida, Crested Butte, and Carbondale generated 88% of 

the clicks. Average click-through rate was 3.8%.  
 Public Relations: 268 total mentions, 142.9 million reach, over $67,900 publicity value 

Events 
• RCD organized 6 community events:  

Creatives’ Meet and Greet (May) 
3 First Fridays (July – Sept.) 
2 evenings of the Ridgway Independent Film Fest (Nov.) 

• Supported 2018 Noel Night promotions 
• Promoted numerous community events through Facebook and e-blasts 

Education and Networking – Received professional and volunteer development via trainings, 
webinars, and conferences (2 statewide Creative District Convenings, CCI Summit, Main Street 
Managers Summit, and National Main Street conference in Kansas City) 

Volunteer Group Transitions 
• RCD Committee became RCD Creative Advocacy Team (C.A.T.) 
• Changes in membership in 2018 

o 5 who resigned (Joanne Taplin, Pam Kraft, John Clark, Rick Bickhart, Ashley King)  
o 5 who joined (Ninah Hunter, Sue Lake, Paula Marlatt, Diane Thompson, Amanda 

Gabrielson) 
• Clarification of Town procedures and roles (social media, expending funds, expectations 

of team members, use of Treehouse Studio, planning events) 
• Orientation for new members completed 
• Retreat held in Dec. with external facilitator 

Collaboration with Ridgway Area Chamber of Commerce 
• Took Chamber director to National Main Street Conference 
• Worked with Chamber contractor on Creative Corridor itineraries and content for 

Corridor webpage 
• Oriented 2 new Chamber staff to Town/Chamber collaborations 
• Shared 2019 costs with Chamber for CTO Creative Corridor grant match 
• Worked with Chamber contractor on wayfinding map design and edits 
• Communicated regularly regarding items of interest to businesses, Ridgway promotions 

requests, and visitor inquiries 



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #7 
 







 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #8 
 



Disposable Bag Ordinance Report  
Lindsey Romaniello 
Dec 20, 2018 
 

The purpose of this memo is to summarize strategies used by other communities to 
implement their disposable bag restrictions and to highlight strategies that could be useful for 
Ridgway. Ridgway will be treading new ground with the community’s bold ordinance mandates, 
as Ridgway will be the first community in Colorado to not only ban plastic bags in grocery stores 
and retail stores, but also ban plastic bags used inside stores (such as fruit and veggie bags, bags 
at the hardware store, and those used for packaging at restaurants). A further challenge will be in 
facing a very short time to implement this ban and prepare retailers for the transition. This memo 
will call for rapid action and tenacious community involvement to make sure the March 1st 
deadline will be met and accepted by the community.  

There are eight communities in Colorado with ordinances that limit the use of plastic and 
disposable bags. These include Aspen, Avon, Boulder, Breckenridge, Crested Butte, Telluride, 
Carbondale and Vail. For this report a member of staff from each of these communities, except 
for Telluride was interviewed. Another six communities in Colorado have attempted to 
implement disposable bag restricting ordinances but have failed or have had the ordinances 
overturned. Of the eight communities in Colorado, only two communities have banned the use of 
plastic bags in both retail and grocery stores. Despite the stringency of the disposable bag 
restrictions, all eight communities had common strategies that made their ordinances successful. 
 
Advertising and Outreach 
 The success of disposable bag-bans was achieved through vigorous outreach and 
education. This was done in various ways, including talking extensively with business owners, 
posting signage for customers, passing out flyers, posting ads in the local paper, education 
forums and passing out re-useable bags. These steps helped prepare people and businesses for 
the change, as well as provided valuable reminders after the ordinance was implemented. It was 
stressed by many that were interviewed that doing this as early as possible is greatly appreciated 
by businesses and helps prevent push-back by community members. Of the eight towns, seven 
gave their community 6-8 months to prepare for the change and most expressed a wish to have 
longer, as push-back from unprepared businesses was the biggest issue in implementing bag-
bans.   
 To gain support for disposable bag ordinances, municipalities utilized some creative 
strategies. One of the more common strategies was giving out re-useable bags to businesses and 
individuals. These bags would display the town logo or local art. By giving these bags out, a 
general feeling of good-will was created between the municipality and community members or 
businesses. This strategy seemed to defuse negative perceptions of the new restrictions. Another 
common strategy is to provide signage for businesses, displaying the ordinance restrictions and 
reminders for customers to bring their own bags. These signs can come in the form of postcards 
for the registers or window signs, and are a useful marketing strategy for gaining support for the 
ordinance.    

If Ridgway decides to use these strategies, or other costly marketing strategies, funding 
will be an issue. Many communities charge a fee for disposable bag use, and can use this money 
to fund reusable bag creation and distribution, and marketing. However, other communities 
found funding through a couple alternative avenues. One was  by getting sponsorship from local 



businesses. The Town of Avon did this by partnering with Alpine Bank, and they expressed that 
if they had to do it over again, they would have sought other sponsors as well. Getting funding 
from environmental non-profits  is also a possibility. Alternately, one community recommended 
securing funding in a budget by the town council.   

Outreach geared specifically toward businesses was very important to many of the 
communities in this survey. Businesses and clerks are often the first to feel the push-back from 
bag restrictions. Therefore, providing them with adequate support was a priority for town staff 
members. To provide this support, town staff created FAQ sheets for business owners and clerks, 
so the businesses knew how to answer the public’s inevitable questions on the ordinance. Also, 
frequent face-to-face visits to businesses were described as being very useful and communication 
was vital in maintaining support for the ordinances. These conversations were  also useful in 
helping educate the clerks of businesses about the details of the ordinance restrictions.  

Another strategy that one community found to be useful was sending out a letter of 
written support by the mayor or city council members to businesses. This could be a useful 
strategy to help reassure community members that elected officials support the bag-ban initiative 
and encourage people to support the ordinance as well.   
 
The Importance of Providing Notice 
  An important part of passing a bag restrictive ordinance is giving retailers ample time to 
go through their current supplies of non-compliant bags and plan for compliance. This was 
stressed by all of the communities interviewed for this memo. Businesses appreciate this notice 
so they might come up with new strategies for bagging and work with their suppliers to find 
compliant products that meet their budgets. 
 Preparing individual community members with advanced notice should also be priority 
for the transition. Posting signage in stores will be continually helpful both before and after the 
ordinance is implemented. To accomplish this, Ridgway should encourage community 
involvement to pass out flyers, post signs, stand outside businesses and talk with customers, and 
advertise/talk with community members before the ordinance implementation date.    
 A strategy that was used by five of the eight communities was holding informational 
forums. These were geared both towards businesses and individual community members. These 
were generally seen as “helpful” and community staff saw these as valuable tools in providing 
education.   
 Another project that would help support the community in enacting these new restrictions 
would be to set up a bag share/donation bin. This has been done by three other communities in 
Colorado. These bins were initially filled with reusable bags provided by the town and then 
people were encouraged to leave or return bags when they could. Town staff in Aspen, Colorado 
mentioned that these bins have to be partially sustained by the town as well, contributing some 
stock of re-useable bags intermittently, as community members almost never donate enough bags 
to keep the bins full. The placement of these bins varies from town to town. For example, Vail, 
Colorado has three bins through-out their community, at the library, bus stops outside the super 
markets and town hall. Setting these up and maintaining them is something that could be taken 
on by community members.  
 
Advising Businesses on Alternative Products 
 Of all the communities interviewed for this report, none mentioned assisting businesses 
in finding alternative products. In all communities, Town staff distributed information on 



ordinance compliance and then allowed the individual businesses to make decisions with their 
distributers on which products to replace their current stock. This allowed individual businesses 
to choose the best products to fit their budgets and did not imply that businesses use any certain 
brand of product. Giving businesses enough time to order these products and use up their current 
stock of un-compliant bags is crucial. Without ample time to transition, businesses risk not being 
able to use up their current stock of un-compliant products and losing money. This is yet another 
argument for making sure communities have plenty of notice and time to transition before 
implementing disposable bag ordinance. However, if businesses are struggling to go through 
their bags in time recommendations or for how to get rid of bags might be made or the town 
could provide special accommodations for specific businesses.  

Crested Butte Colorado encouraged businesses with excess bags to donate them to thrift 
stores and use the donation as a tax write off. They also provided a list of locations near-by that 
had plastic bag recycling facilities, such as Walmart and Safeway. On a larger scale, Fort Collins 
began providing plastic bag recycling facilities, in lieu of a failed plastic bag ban.  

These strategies for disposing of plastic bags, while helpful, are not ideal. The most 
effective way of getting rid of businesses excess plastic bags is to give them time to use them up. 
When Crested Butte implemented their bag ordinance one business, after a slow winter retail 
season, still had stock of un-compliant bags. The City Council granted an extension on 
compliance for the business. This was greatly appreciated and was a step that helped to smooth 
the transition for the community.           
  
Enforcement 

Most communities with bag restrictions did not have a broad enough bag-ban to warrant 
prioritization of enforcement. However, in communities where enforcement was warranted, they 
relied on community members to report retailers that did not meet compliance. After an incident 
of non-compliance was brought the attention of the town staff two different avenues of 
enforcement were taken. One method of enforcement used by town staff was re-education. For 
example, in Aspen, when one concerned citizen noticed that the appropriate fee was not being 
charged to disposable bags, a town staff member went to the business found that the business had 
been failing to train employees to add the fee. This was remedied with retraining initiatives and 
by distributing more information to clerks and business employees.  

The other avenue of enforcement, which is utilized by Crested Butte, is to send a member 
of law enforcement to deliver a verbal or written warning to businesses that are not complying 
with the ordinance. If this warning did not fix the problem, fines were issued in accordance with 
the ordinance. These fines start with $50 for first offence, $100 for second offence and $300 for 
all additional offences. So far no one has been charged a non-compliance fine in Crested Butte. 

These two avenues of enforcement strategy could be used in concert with each other, 
starting with reeducation and then moving to more stern enforcement. This is the strategy in 
Breckenridge and Boulder who charge and collect bag fees, however the fines for non-
compliance are enforced by fee/tax collection officials and not from law enforcement.   
 
Action diversity 
 Multiple communities stressed using a variety of strategies in order to make a bag-ban 
ordinance successful. For example, while some communities only utilized signage and 
distributing reusable bags, both the community developers in Avon and Crested Butte described 
using many strategies so as to make the importance of the disposable bag ordinance as visible as 



possible. While it will depend on the number of community volunteers Ridgway can rally, it is 
suggested that Ridgway use as many of the methods listed in this memo as possible.   
By doing this, Ridgway hopefully will be able to have a smooth transition in becoming 
Colorado’s first plastic-bag-free town.  
 
The Future and Single-Use Plastics 
 While Ridgway has shown enthusiasm for the banning of single-use plastics, the 
ramifications of such a ban should be seriously considered and studied. Colorado clause 25-17-
104 in CRS2017-title-25 states: “No unit of local government shall require or prohibit the use or 
sale of specific types of plastic materials or products or restrict or mandate containers, 
packaging, or labeling for any consumer products.” While this language is somewhat vague in its 
definitions of “container and packaging”, it may provide precedent for legal action.  
 This does not mean that other steps cannot be taken to encourage businesses to stop using 
single use plastics. In Aspen, Colorado, restaurants are encouraged to only distribute plastic 
straws upon request, and since adopting this strategy restaurant owners report that 90% of the 
time customers didn’t care for or ask for a straw. The remaining percentage of customers that did 
ask for a straw would often do so for medical reasons. This reduction of straw use was a 
welcome cost reduction and space-saver for restaurants.  

Another possibility for encouraging the reduction of single use plastics is providing 
incentive to businesses who don’t use plastics. A temporary reduction of annual business license 
cost is an example of such an incentive, but there many other possibilities.  

No matter the strategy Ridgway decides to take in reducing single-use plastic waste, 
businesses need to be consulted and data needs to be collected prior to passing an official 
ordinance.  
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Useful Marketing Examples and Informational Resources:  
 
Bag Law Information was initially collected from the following website-  
http://www.baglaws.com/legislation.php?state=Colorado 
 
Boulders FAQ sheet-  
https://www-static.bouldercolorado.gov/docs/Boulder_Bag_Fee_Retailer_Fact_Sheet-1-
201511241203.pdf?_ga=2.25772093.1207058961.1545065642-1201784605.1542149320 
 
More Plastic Bag Legislation Information- 
https://www.plasticbaglaws.org/  
 
Breckenridge Bags and Post cards: 

  

http://www.baglaws.com/legislation.php?state=Colorado
https://www-static.bouldercolorado.gov/docs/Boulder_Bag_Fee_Retailer_Fact_Sheet-1-201511241203.pdf?_ga=2.25772093.1207058961.1545065642-1201784605.1542149320
https://www-static.bouldercolorado.gov/docs/Boulder_Bag_Fee_Retailer_Fact_Sheet-1-201511241203.pdf?_ga=2.25772093.1207058961.1545065642-1201784605.1542149320
https://www.plasticbaglaws.org/


 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #9 
 



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #10 
 



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #11 
 



 

 
            

 

Purchased Products and Services 
 

            

 

Ouray Police Department, Ouray County SO, Ridgway Marshall’s Office 
 

            

   

Price Estimate Date: 
 

        
    

December 12, 2018 
 

 

Estimate Number: 
 

 

QUO-07814-M8L2Z8 
 

 

            

  

Expiration Date: 
 

    

Prepared By: 
 

 

Troy Archer 
 

 

  

January 31, 2019 
 

    

            

    
 

 
  

 Page 1 of 5 
 

 

    

        

 

Spillman Advantages 
 

      

        

 

  Spillman's site license eliminates the frustrations of limited licensing and allows for agency growth 

by providing access to all desktop modules without individual license fees. 

  Each Spillman system includes first-year maintenance, a comprehensive warranty, unlimited 

standard business hour support, and free enhancements. 

  Professional services include onsite administration training and setup assistance as well as thorough 

end user training (all onsite services include travel and per diem). 
 

  

        

 

Montrose Police Department will do admin setup  

Two weeks of onsite training  

One week of Go-Live assistance 
 

 

        

    

Price 
 

   

   

Software: 111,803 

Professional Services: 42,240 

3rd Party Hardware: 6,131 

Total: $160,174 

  
 

   

  



 

 
            

 

Purchased Products and Services 
 

            

 

Ouray Police Department, Ouray County SO, Ridgway Marshall’s Office 
 

            

   

Price Estimate Date: 
 

        
    

December 12, 2018 
 

 

Estimate Number: 
 

 

QUO-07814-M8L2Z8 
 

 

            

  

Expiration Date: 
 

    

Prepared By: 
 

 

Troy Archer 
 

 

  

January 31, 2019 
 

    

            

    
 

 
  

 Page 2 of 5 
 

 

    

    

Integrated Hub   

Integrated Hub - Names, Vehicles, Property, Wanted Persons, Message 
Center 

  

   

   
 

  

             

    

Records Management   

Evidence Management   

Law Records   

Traffic   

  

 
 

   

             

    

Mobile   

Mobile Arrest Form   

Driver License Scanning   

Mobile AVL and Mapping   

Mobile Incident Offense National Form   

Mobile Records   

Mobile State & National Queries   

Mobile Voiceless Dispatch   

  

 
 

  

             

    

Imaging   

Imaging   

  

   
 

  

             

    

State Specific Products   

IBR - CO Specific   

CO State Link   

  

   
 

  

             



 

 
            

 

Purchased Products and Services 
 

            

 

Ouray Police Department, Ouray County SO, Ridgway Marshall’s Office 
 

            

   

Price Estimate Date: 
 

        
    

December 12, 2018 
 

 

Estimate Number: 
 

 

QUO-07814-M8L2Z8 
 

 

            

  

Expiration Date: 
 

    

Prepared By: 
 

 

Troy Archer 
 

 

  

January 31, 2019 
 

    

            

    
 

 
  

 Page 3 of 5 
 

 

    

     

Subscription Software   

Learning Management System - 1 Year   

  

   
 

 

             

   

Hardware/3rd Party Products Quantity  

Driver’s License Scanning Hardware 15  

Garmin GPS18X 15  

  

   
 

   

             

             

             

   

Payment Terms   

Equal Payments Over Three Years Made By Each Agency 
No Penalty for Early Payment 

  

   

   
 

    

             

 

2nd-year Maintenance  Price 

 2nd-year maintenance charges will begin 12 months from the go-live date. 

 Future maintenance is estimated for your planning purposes and is not included in this purchase. 

2nd-year Maintenance Total Equally Split Between Ridgway, Ouray PD, and Ouray 
County Sheriff’s Office: 

$12,623 

 

     

             

 

Host Agency: 
 

      

  

Montrose Police Department 
 

 

             

      

Shared Agencies: 

Ridgway Marshall’s Office 

Ouray Police Department 

Ouray County Sheriff's Department 
 

 

             



 

 
            

 

Purchased Products and Services 
 

            

 

Ouray Police Department, Ouray County SO, Ridgway Marshall’s Office 
 

            

   

Price Estimate Date: 
 

        
    

December 12, 2018 
 

 

Estimate Number: 
 

 

QUO-07814-M8L2Z8 
 

 

            

  

Expiration Date: 
 

    

Prepared By: 
 

 

Troy Archer 
 

 

  

January 31, 2019 
 

    

            

    
 

 
  

 Page 4 of 5 
 

 

    

   

This Purchase Agreement ("Agreement") is made and entered into by and between the Customer and 

Spillman Technologies, a Motorola Solutions Company.  Shared Agency License Agreement must also be 

executed in order for this agreement to be valid. 

In the event the County/City Boards fail to appropriate funds for this Agreement, the Customer may 

terminate this Agreement (in whole or part) at any time for any reason.  To exercise this right, Customer 

must provide to Motorola formal written notice at least thirty (30) days in advance of the effective date of the 

termination.  The notice must explicitly state the effective date of the termination and whether the contract 

termination is in whole or in part, and if in part, which part is being terminated.  If Customer exercises this 

right to terminate for non-appropriations, it will be liable to pay Motorola for (1) the portion of the Contract 

Price attributable to the Equipment and/or Software delivered, and all services performed, on or before the 

effective date of the termination; and (2) costs and expenses that Motorola incurs as a result of the 

termination of the Agreement, including but not limited to costs and expenses associated with cancellation of 

subcontracts, restocking fees, removal of installation or test equipment, etc.  If the portion of the Contract 

Price and/or the recoverable costs and expenses attributable to the termination of the Agreement are not 

readily ascertainable, Customer will be liable to pay Motorola for the reasonable value of such Equipment, 

Software, services, costs and expenses.   
 

   

             

   

Ouray Police Department   

Customer Name  Authorized Signature 

Date  Print Name and Title 
 

   

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
            

 

Purchased Products and Services 
 

            

 

Ouray Police Department, Ouray County SO, Ridgway Marshall’s Office 
 

            

   

Price Estimate Date: 
 

        
    

December 12, 2018 
 

 

Estimate Number: 
 

 

QUO-07814-M8L2Z8 
 

 

            

  

Expiration Date: 
 

    

Prepared By: 
 

 

Troy Archer 
 

 

  

January 31, 2019 
 

    

            

    
 

 
  

 Page 5 of 5 
 

 

    

 

Ouray Sheriff’s Office 

  

Customer Name  Authorized Signature 

Date  Print Name and Title 
 

 

 

 

 

Town of Ridgway 

  

Customer Name  Authorized Signature 

Date  Print Name and Title 

 



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Manager’s Report 
 


	(00) 2019.01.09 (TC Agenda)
	(00) Consent Agenda
	(01) Dec 12 tc min
	(02) Register of Demands
	(05) Agenda Item 5
	(05) RACC_AnnualReport_2018.FINAL-SMALL
	(06) Agenda Item 6
	(06a) Accomplishments 2018 for RCD-MS for TC
	(07) Agenda Item 7
	(07) AS Signed Memorandum of Understanding 2019
	(08) Agenda Item 8
	(08) Report on Bag Ban 2.0 2018.12.21 Lindsey’s points)L.Roma to TC
	(09) Agenda Item 9
	(10) Agenda Item 10
	(11) Agenda Item 11
	(11) Ouray-Ridgway Purchase Agreement 12-12-18
	(13) Agenda Item Mgr Rpt



